
       
                    
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Billy Bain 

Vice Mayor Mara Zapata, Ph.D.                         Councilman Bob Best 

Councilwoman Maria Puente Mitchell                  Councilman Jaime Petralanda  
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred from 
further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of 
the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal attacks and 
comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 

 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, April 27, 2020 – 6:00 p.m. 

Virtual Council Meeting see p. 4-5 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
   

3. Agenda / Order of Business 
 

4. Awards & Presentations: None. 
 
5. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. This portion of the meeting also 
includes any pre-screened video submittals.  The purpose of Open Forum is to encourage residents 
and members of the public to address their concerns and make comments on any item.  The City 
Council will not enter into a dialogue at this time. City staff will gladly address any question, issue, 
and/or comment after the meeting. The Mayor is the presiding officer of all Council meetings and shall 
conduct the meetings accordingly.  

 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) March 9, 2020 – Regular Meeting 
B) April 20 ,2020 – Special Council Meeting 

 
7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None. 

 

8. Public Hearings:  None. 
 

9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted): 
 
A) Recommendation by Public Works that Council authorize the issuance of a Purchase 

Order to Distreebutors, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County contract #1298-1/21-1 (attached), in an 
amount not to exceed $47,502.50, for the purchase of street tree planting and planting of street trees, 
as funds were budgeted in the FY18/19 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E) (5) of the City Code 

 
 



 
B) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase to open Purchase 

Order #200240 in the amount of $23,000.00 to BTS Land Service Corp. for tree trimming throughout 
the City.  Council approved $100,000.00, October 8, 2019 as funds were approved in the FY 19/20 
Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E) (5) of the City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a 

Purchase Order to Royal Rent-A-Car Systems of Florida, utilizing Miami-Dade County’s Bid No. 8809-
0/19, Vehicle Rental Services, in the amount of $10,388.00, for the monthly rental of two vehicles (for 
a 7-month period), as these funds qualify for expenditure from the Police Law Enforcement Trust 
Fund, as funds are in the projected FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City 
Code 

 
D) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council authorize the issuance of a 

Purchase Order to Safeware, Inc., utilizing U.S. Communities Contract #4400008468, in the amount 
of $24,624.00 for the purchase of forty-five (45) Avon First Responder C50 gas masks kits, as funds 
are in the projected FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 

E) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council waive the competitive bid 
process in the best interests of the City, mainly due to they are the only local vendor in Miami-Dade 
County to provide police uniforms (we’ve established over a twenty-year relationship), and approve an 
expenditure to Lou’s Police Distributors, not to exceed $25,000.00, for police uniforms as funds were 
approved in the FY 19/20 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 
10. Old Business: None. 
 
11. New Business:  

 
A) Request for additional funding for the Emergency mold remediation work at the City Hall 

Building  
 
B) Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the competitive bid 

process in the best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold Assessment Report dated 
March 3, 2020 and as detailed in my separate memo to council (attached), and approve an 
expenditure to Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc. in an amount of $10,000 for Mechanical 
Engineering Services, pursuant to the emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) 
of the City Code. Subsequent to our March 23 meeting that was cancelled, the City also executed the 
attached contract with Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc. so that work could commence. Staff also 
requests approval of the executed contract as part of this request 

 
C)  Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the competitive bid 

process in the best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold Assessment Report dated 
March 3, 2020 and as detailed in my separate memo to council (attached), and approve an 
expenditure to Synergy General Contracting, LLC,  (SGC) the lowest of three written quotes, in an 
amount of $234,400 for mold remediation and repairs at City hall  as funds were budgeted in the 
FY19/20 Budget pursuant to the emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of 
the City Code. Subsequent to our March 23 meeting that was cancelled, the City also executed the 
attached contract SGC so that work could commence. Staff also requests approval of the executed 
contract as part of this request 

 
 



D) Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council approve an expenditure to 
Thermal Concepts, a sole source provider for Trane, an authorized contractor, in an amount not to 
exceed $83,886 for the replacement of eight coil units related to the HVAC system in the City Hall 
facility pursuant to the emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City 
Code 

 
E) Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the competitive bid 

process in the best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold Assessment Report dated 
March 3, 2020 and as detailed in my separate memo to council (attached), and approve an 
expenditure to Williams Scotsman Inc. as a sole source provider, in an amount of $45,823 for a two 
month rental of two mobile office trailers, including furniture, installation and ADA compliance, 
pursuant to the emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code 

 
12. Other Business: 
 

A) Request by Vice Mayor Zapata to discuss the Miami-Dade County Circle Project 
 

B) COVID-19 Updates - City Council may Address any of their questions to City 
Department Heads 

 
C) Request by Councilman Best to discuss the reopening of the Golf Course and City 

Parks amid the COVID-19 pandemic 
 

D) Appointing a primary and secondary delegate to the Miami-Dade County League of 
Cities Board of Directors  

 

13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 

14. Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

 
The City of Miami Springs will hold a virtual Council meeting on: 

Monday, April 27, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 
 

The meeting agenda is available online at: 
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings 

 
Elected officials and City staff will participate through video conference. 

 
Members of the public may watch or call in to the virtual public meeting live by following these instructions: 

 
WATCH THE VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING 

• Comcast/Xfinity: Channel 77 (Meeting will not be live broadcast) 
• YouTube: LIVE  https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC2at9KNnqUxZRSw1UkhdHLQ/featured 
• From your computer/mobile device: LIVE https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/meetings  

CALL IN TO THE VIRTUAL PUBLIC MEETING  
Dial 305-805-5151 then input the Meeting ID: 863-9512-4146, followed by #. 

There is no participant ID. Press # again. 

Any person requiring special accommodations to access this proceeding is asked to advise the City  
at least 2 days before the proceeding by contacting the City Clerk at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov  

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS WILL BE ACCEPTED BY THE FOLLOWING MEANS: 

EMAILED COMMENTS: Members of the public may email their public comments to the City in advance 
of the meeting. Please email the City at cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov by 12:00 p.m. on the day of the 
meeting with the subject line “PUBLIC COMMENT” and the following information in the body of the 
email: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, and/or if you are engaged in 
Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. Please limit your comments to no more than 350 
words. Public comments received via email may be read into the record during the public comment portion 
of the agenda, if any.  

LIVE REMOTE & TELEPHONE COMMENTS: If there is a public comment portion of the agenda or 
the City Council opens a matter for public comment, live remote public comments will be accepted as 
follows:  
By telephone: To ask to speak during the meeting, please press *9 from your telephone. You will be called 
on to speak during public comments and identified by the last 4-digits of your telephone number.  

During the virtual meeting, when your name or last 4-digits of your telephone number is called, you will be 
unmuted and you may deliver your comments.  

Please be sure to be in a quiet area to avoid unnecessary noise. Please provide the following information 
before delivering your comments: Your Name, Address, if you are a hired Consultant or City Employee, 
and/or if you are engaged in Lobbying Activities and/or representing an organization. 

A time limit may be imposed for each speaker during public comment. 
Your cooperation is appreciated in observing the time limit. 

Decorum: Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, 
unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the majority vote of the City 
Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or 



ethnic slurs, personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited 
comments when addressing the Council during public comments. 

 
PUBLIC RECORDS 

The meeting will be recorded for later viewing and is a public record. The virtual chat, if any, will be saved 
and is a public record. Minutes of the meeting will be taken and will be made available. 
 

NOTICE PURSUANT TO §286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES 
IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE BOARD, AGENCY, OR 
COMMISSION WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR 
HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS, AND FOR SUCH 
PURPOSE, HE OR SHE MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE 
UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this proceeding is asked to advise the City at least 2 days before the 
proceeding by contacting the City Clerk’s Office at 305-805-5006.  

 

LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
In accordance with Section 33-01 of the City Code, adopting Section 2-11.1(s) of the Miami-Dade County 
Code, any person engaging in lobbying activities, as defined therein, must register at the City Clerk’s Office 
before addressing the City Council on the agenda items or engaging in lobbying activities. Specifically, all 
persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, 
defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, 
decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation 
of City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or 
recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall 
register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall 
state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity 
which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to 
lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk and online at: 
https://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/cityclerk/lobbyist-registration-form-0. 

 
 

Have questions or need additional information? 
Write: cityclerk@miamisprings-fl.gov 

Call: 305-805-5006 
Mail: 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, FL 33166 



 
 1 

      
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday, March 9, 2020 7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers at City Hall  

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Billy Bain 
Vice Mayor Maria Puente Mitchell 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Mara Zapata, Ph.D.  
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda  
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Dan Espino 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
Chief Armando Guzman 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Vice Mayor Maria Mitchell 
 Salute to the Flag: Students from M.A Milam K-8 Center, 6th and 8th Grade led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Agenda / Order of Business: 
 
City Attorney Dan Espino advised City Council that a matter came up earlier that 

required their attention and consideration.  He explained that the owner of the 

restaurant Burritoville, currently has permits and plans in the County’s DERM 

department requiring the City to allow the current location of the  grease trap to 

remain where it is, which is in the City’s public right-of-way.  He further stated that 

one of the requirements from DERM is City Council approval and agreement to allow 

the current grease trap located on the City’s right-of-way within the alley.  He stated 

that the City Council’s consideration is requested during New Business of the 

agenda. 
 

4. Awards & Presentations:   
 

A) Swearing-in Ceremony for New Police Officer Lianet Castellanos 



 
 2 

 

Chief Guzman introduce new Police Officer Lianet Castellanos.  He proceeded to 

swear-in Officer Castellanos and congratulated her and her family for being a part of 

the Miami Springs Police Department. She thanked the Chief, her family and the 

public for the opportunity. 
 

B) Presentation by Miami-Dade County Corrections Director Daniel Junior on the 
TGK expansion proposal 
 

Mayor Bain introduced Corrections Director Daniel Junior to the podium.  Director 

Junior presented an oral and visual presentation.  He answered all of the Council’s 

questions and concerns.  Director Junior stated that he has to report back to the 

Miami-Dade County Commission in 90 days with alternative locations for the 

proposed new detention facility.   
 
C) Proclamation presentation to the Miami Springs Procurement Department for 

“Public Procurement Month” for the month of March 2020, for the delivery of goods and 
services for the City 
 

Mayor Bain presented Zuzell Murguido, Procurement Specialist, with a proclamation 

announcing the month of March as “Public Procurement Month.”  Ms. Murguido 

stated the purpose of the recognition and then thanked the Mayor and City Council 

for the acknowledgment. 
 
D) Recognizing March Artist display in City Hall Lobby, Maria Font 

 

Ms. Maria Font was not available to attend at this time. 
 
5. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City 

Council:  Vincent Medel, 330 Miami Springs Avenue; Roy Cao, 861 Oriole Avenue; Miriam 
Rio, Miriam Rio, 419 Falcon Avenue; Edwin Mendez, 419 Falcon Avenue; Carmen 
Spangenberg, 1131 Quail Avenue; Charlie Leonard, 190 Westward Drive; Richard Block, 
Virginia Gardens Councilman; Nirmal Nathan, 77 Palmetto Drive. 

 

6. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) February 24, 2020 – Regular Meeting 
 

Vice Mayor Mitchell requested that the following sentence be added to the minutes 

for item, “the property owner denied the City Manager access to the property in 

order for him to determine the estimate of repairs and cost for upgrades to the 

building as requested by the City Council.” 

 

Councilman Best moved to approve the corrected minutes with the additional 

language of the Regular Meeting of March 9, 2020.  Councilwoman Zapata seconded 

the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 

Mitchell, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman Petralanda, and 



 
 3 

Mayor Bain. 

 

7. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 
 
8. Public Hearings:  None at this time. 
 
9. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted): None. 

 

10. Old Business:  None. 

 

11. New Business:  
 
A) Approval of agreement with Calvano Foods d/b/a Burritoville and the City of 

Miami Springs relating to the maintenance of an existing grease trap located in the City’s 
public alley 

 
City Attorney Dan Espino explained to the City Council that the request for an 

easement and maintenance agreement for Jeff Dunevitz to maintain his restaurant’s, 

Buritoville, grease trap located in the City’s public alley.  He stated that Miami-Dade 

County DERM is requiring the agreement in order to move forward with the 

construction plan’s process. The City Attorney and City Manager answered all of the 

City Council’s questions. 

 

Vice Mayor Mitchell moved to approve the agreement between the City and Calvano 

Foods d/b/a Buritoville.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on 

roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Mitchell, Councilman Best, 

Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 
B) Recommendation by the Art in Public Places (APP) Ad-Hoc Committee to 

make a final selection of two artists and award contracts to each for a total of $59,352.00 
which will be divided amongst both artists to create the public art for the new Senior 
Center/ Multi-purpose Facility. The Artists’ 100% designs will be incorporated into the front 
entrance, rear patio and main lobby of the new Senior Center. The funds for the Art in 
Public Places artists’ contracts (total of 1½% of the total construction budget as required by 
Miami-Dade Counties APP Ordinance) is already included in the Senior Center 
construction budget 

 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero read the recommendation by title.  She 

introduced the Committee Chair, Patricia Romeu, who further explained how the 

committee came to its decision on the chosen artists.   

 

Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation from the Ad-Hoc 

Committee which are, Carlos Alves/JC Carroll and Magnus Sodamin.  Vice Mayor 

Mitchell seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 

follows: Vice Mayor Mitchell, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman 

Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 



 
 4 

C) Request to nominate and induct Coach Drew and Coach Tom Okubo Wall of 
Fame for their years of service to the Miami Springs Senior High School Women’s Soccer 
 

Mayor Bain stated that he had a request from a resident to nominate two coaches, 

Coach Drew and Coach Tom, to the Wall of Fame at the recreation center for their 

years of service as coaches with Miami Springs Senior High School. 

 

Councilman Best moved to approve the nomination of Coach Drew and Coach Tom 

on the Wall of fame.  Councilwoman Zapata seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 

on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Mitchell, Councilman Best, 

Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
  
D) Request by Tom Curtis for consideration of the River Cities liquor licenses, 

circle closure, and operating hours for the River Cities Event 
 

Mr. Tom Curtis announced that the River Cities Festival committee collectively 

decided to cancel the festival this year due to the potential threat of the COVID-19 

infection.  He stated he would like to get the City Council’s input before making the 

official announcement.  The Council stated that they support the decision made by 

Mr. Curtis and the committee.  Mr. Curtis stated that he is looking into possibly 

having something in the Country Club to coordinate the high school reunions.  Mr. 

Curtis says that he looks forward to having the festival next year.  
 
12. Other Business:  

 
A) Vote of Confidence for the City Clerk as Required by Section 8.01 (1) of the 

City Charter   
 

Councilman Best moved to give City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria a vote of 

confidence. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll 

call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Mitchell, Councilman Best, 

Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain voting Yes. 
 
B) Vote of Confidence for the City Attorney as Required by Section 8.01 (1) of 

the City Charter 
 

Councilman Best moved to give City Attorney Dan Espino, and the firm Weiss Serota 

a vote of confidence. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 

on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Mitchell, Councilman Best, 

Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain voting Yes. 

 

 13. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Dan Espino announced that Haydee Sera will be co-counsel moving forward.  
 



 
 5 

City Attorney Haydee Sera advised the City Council on the recent changes due to COVID-
19  declared by Governor DeSantis on the gathering of elected officials and public meeting 
requirements.   She said she will keep the City informed on any further updates.                  
            

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager William Alonso gave thanks to Chief Guzman and the Police Department for 
their response to the recent bomb threat made to MIA.  They were able to apprehend the 
suspect in Miami Springs.  He also thanked them for their quick action at the Golf Course 
recently as well, during an incident that occurred there. 
 
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero stated upcoming events and reminded the public 
that more information on events is available on the City’s website.  
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Petralanda had no report at this time. 
 
Councilwoman Zapata had no report at this time. 
 
Vice Mayor Mitchell reminded the City staff that now is a great time to update the City’s 
Emergency Manual and reminded the public that hurricane season is quickly approaching. 
She announced that the Woman’s Club will sponsor a Spaghetti dinner as a fundraiser on 
Saturday.  Also, she said All Angel’s will host their annual crawfish boil this coming 
weekend. 
 
Councilman Best reminded the public to be safe during this COVID-19 infection spread. He 
stated that this is just the beginning of many closures and to be aware of upcoming 
national and local notifications on how to prevent the spread of the virus.    
 
Mayor Bain thanked all the members of the public who attended the meeting tonight and 
participating in the detention center discussion.     
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 6 

 
 
 
14. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 7:50 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 9th day of March, 2020. 
 
 
           
Billy Bain, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 



 
 1 

      
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
Special Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 20, 2020 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Council Meeting using Communications Media Technology Pursuant to 

Governor’s Executive Order 20-69 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:02 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
Mayor Billy Bain 
Vice Mayor Mara Zapata, Ph.D. 
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilwoman Maria Puente Mitchell 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda  
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso  
Assistant City Manager Tammy Romero 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
City Attorney Haydee Sera 
Police Chief Armando Guzman 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell 
Senior Center Manager Tammy Key 
Building Official and Code Enforcement Director Ulises Fernandez 

 
2. Overview of Virtual Meeting Procedures – Emergency Order 20-01 

• Council Approval of Virtual Meeting Procedures and Ratification of 
Emergency Order 20-01 

 
City Attorney Haydee Sera read meeting and notice requirements for the record in 

order for the City Council to conduct virtual meetings according to the guidelines 

issued by Florida Governor DeSantis.  She advised City Council that a an Emergency 

Order was issued by the City Manager on April 13, 2020 reflecting the City’s ability to 

conduct virtual meetings.  The City Attorney requested that the City Council ratify the 

Emergency Order and adopt it at this meeting.  

 

Mayor Bain opened the item up for public comments.  There were no speakers at this 

time. 

 

Councilman Best moved to approve to ratify Emergency Order 20-01 on virtual 

meetings.  Councilwoman Mitchell seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll 

call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Mitchell, Councilman Best, 



 
 2 

Councilwoman Zapata, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain. 
 

3. COVID-19 Update 
• City Manager William Alonso Overall Report 

 
City Manger Alonso gave a brief report on the City’s COVID-19 practices and State and 
County orders.  He stated that City Hall has been shutdown due to mold remediation 
efforts, therefore, City Hall Offices and Police Department have been relocated to the 
Recreation Center and trailers, respectively.  The following departments gave individual 
reports on departmental functions amid the COVID-19 pandemic: 
 

• Tom Nash, Public Works Director, on Public Works and Sanitation Activities 
and Safety Measures 

• Police Chief Armando Guzman, Police Activities and Manpower Safety 
Measures 

• Omar Luna, Recreation Director, on Recreation Activities 
• Tammy Key, Senior Center Manager, Update on Senior Center Operations 

and Food for Seniors 
• Paul O’Dell, Golf Director, Golf Course Update 
• Ulises Fernandez, Building Official and Code Enforcement Director, update 

of Building and Permitting Activities 
• Council Comments/Questions 

 
4. Public Comments – See Virtual Meeting Notice on how to provide Public Comments 

p.2-3 
 

Discussion on Miami-Dade County Mayor, Mayor Gimenez, potentially opening all 

golf courses ensued.    City Attorney Haydee Sera stated that the City may impose 

stricter guidelines if the Council chooses to open the Golf Course in the wake of the 

County’s announcement about opening golf facilities. 

 

After much discussion, Councilman Best made a motion to not reopen the golf 

course until further discussion at the next Council meeting on April 27
th

.  Vice Mayor 

Zapata seconded the motion, discussion continued.  Mayor Bain opened the item for 

public comment. 

 

City Clerk Gonzalez announced there were speakers that would like to comment on 

the matter.  The following individuals addressed the City Council, Darlene Epstein, 

117 Whitethorn Drive, Individual’s name/address not provided, and John Shapiro, 

1110 Ibis Avenue.  
 

The Mayor requested that the City Clerk state the motion again for the record; City 

Clerk Gonzalez stated the motion on the table is as follows, “motion to not reopen 

the golf course until further discussion at the next Council meeting on April 27
th

”; 

The Mayor called for the vote. The motion passed 3-2 on roll call vote.  The vote was 

as follows: Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda, and Mayor Bain voting 

Yes; Vice Mayor Zapata and Councilman Best voting No. 



 
 3 

 

 

 

After some clarification, Councilman Best restated his motion to not reopen the golf 

course, not withstanding the County’s determination to reopen golf facilities, until 

the April 27
th

.    Vice Mayor Zapata seconded the motion, which carried 4-1 on roll 

call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Zapata, Councilman Best, 

Councilwoman Mitchell, Councilman Petralanda voting Yes; and Mayor Bain voting 

No. 
 
5. Virtual Meeting schedule for future Council Meetings 

 

• Next Virtual Council Meeting scheduled for April 27, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. 

 
6. Adjourn 

 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 7:53 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 4 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 27th day of April, 2020. 
 
 
           
Billy Bain, Mayor 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 







































































           
Meeting Date: 3/23/2020  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Billy Bain and Members of the City Council 
 
From:   William Alonso, City Manager/Fin. Director  
    
Subject: Request for additional funding for the Emergency mold remediation work at the 

City Hall Building  
 
As you are aware, we have been experiencing serious mold problems in city hall for the past couple of 
years. In 2018, after a flooding issue in the Dispatch Office, we had remediation done in the police 
dispatch office and other areas within city hall. After this work our insurer, FMIT, performed another 
mold test and the report showed normal levels of mold. In Feb 2019, we had another mold test done and 
it revealed that the mold had returned. We obtained an estimate of the required work, $227,000, and 
proceeded to include this in the FY19-20 budget that council approved. As we were getting ready to hire 
the company to do this work, we requested another assessment to be done. Last week we received the 
report (see attached) and it revealed that there were three areas (Police Dispatch, 2nd floor ladies’ 
bathroom and one A/C air return on the second floor) that now show toxic levels of mold spore. None of 
our prior assessments ever showed “toxic” levels. The problem has worsened since the last remediation.  
 
We need to have a mechanical engineer look at our A/C system airflow to determine what is causing the 
mold activity in the building. Attached is an email from Roth Southeast, who handles our A/C controls, 
and they state that the first step should be to see how the building can be “positively pressurized”. This 
would be the first issue to be addressed by the engineers. 
 
This is a serious health issue for our staff at City Hall and the Police Department so we are taking 
emergency measures as follows: 
 

1) We have invoked Section 31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the city code regarding emergency procurement. 
2) We are contracting with a remediation company to do the cleanup and sanitizing work 

throughout the building. 
3) We are contracting with a Mechanical Engineer to provide a design plan to replace the existing 

duct system in city hall as well as determining how we can achieve “positive airflow”. The 
assessment report shows that we are operating under a negative pressure when we should be on 
positive pressure. 

4) Public Works has also been in contact with our A/C vendor and they have been out here to check 
the system operation and are providing guidance on any needed improvements. 

5) We have moved all city hall staff to the Community Center. Police will be operating from two 
office trailers along Park St. We have contracted with Williams Scotsman Inc. for the rental of 
two mobile office trailers. The Chief has also reached out to Medley and they will loan us their 
command vehicle so we can use it to run our dispatch operations. 

6) We have already moved all staff from Dispatch to the Medley Command Unit. 
7) We will also plan on holding future Council meetings at the Rebeca Sosa Theatre until city hall 

is back in operation. 



8) We have also contacted the City’s insurer, The Florida Municipal Insurance Trust, to inquire if 
we have coverage for mold remediation and repairs under our policy. 

 
We expect that this entire process will last between 2-3 months. As you know we budgeted $227,000 in 
FY19-20 for this work, per our estimate shown below we project that once all work is completed this 
project will cost approx. $414,108. Therefore we request that Council approve appropriating an 
additional $187,108 for FY19-20 for this project, funds will come from available fund balance.  
 
The following is a breakdown of estimated costs to date: 
 

1) Synergy General Contracting               $234.400   (remediation and repairs) 
2) Willscot Trailers                45,822 (2-Police office trailers, including ADA 

access, furniture, 2 month rental, etc.)   
3) Thermal Concepts    83,886  (replace a/c coils and dampers) 
4) Mechanical Engineer                                10,000   (design new a/c airflow) 
5) Relocation costs city hall staff  20,000 (estimated for IT, phone, POD rentals and 

supplies at community center, etc.) 
6) Relocation costs-Police   20,000 (estimated for electrical and water to trailers, 

supplies, POD rental, etc.) 
Total estimated costs to date           $414,108 

 
As the project commences, we will advise council if any additional funding is needed due to unforeseen 
work that may be necessary. 















































































































           
Meeting Date: 03/23/2020  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
From: William Alonso, City Manager 
 
Subject:  Recommendation to Approve Emergency Award: Contract with 

Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc. for Mechanical Engineering Services 
            
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the competitive bid process in the 
best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold Assessment Report dated March 3, 2020 and 
as detailed in my separate memo to council (attached), and approve an expenditure to 
Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc.in an amount of $10,000 for Mechanical Engineering Services, 
pursuant to the emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code. 
Subsequent to our March 23 meeting that was cancelled, the City also executed the attached contract 
with Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers, Inc. so that work could commence. Staff also requests approval of 
the executed contract as part of this request. 
 
DISCUSSION:  As discussed in our memo to council and the Mold Assessment Report dated March 3, 
2020, the ongoing mold issues at city hall are due to severe high moisture related to city hall operating in 
a “negative pressure” mode instead of “positive pressure”. This requires that a Mechanical Engineer 
evaluate our system and develop design plans in order to correct the problem.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funds would come from available fund balance 
 
 
Submission Date and Time:    4/22/2020 1:00 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  City Manager 
 
Prepared by:  William Alonso                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Public Works 
 
Account No.: 001-5405-541-46-00            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       -0- 
 
                       Current request:  $       $10,000 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $       $10,000 

      

























           
Meeting Date: 03/23/2020  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
From: William Alonso, City Manager 
 
Subject: Recommendation to Approve Emergency Award: Contract with Synergy 

General Contracting for Emergency Mold Remediation/Repairs at City Hall 
            
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council waive the competitive bid process in the 
best interests of the City based on the results of the Mold Assessment Report dated March 3, 2020 and 
as detailed in my separate memo to council (attached), and approve an expenditure to Synergy General 
Contracting, LLC,  (SGC) the lowest of three written quotes, in an amount of $234,400 for mold 
remediation and repairs at City hall  as funds were budgeted in the FY19/20 Budget pursuant to the 
emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code. Subsequent to our 
March 23 meeting that was cancelled, the City also executed the attached contract SGC so that work 
could commence. Staff also requests approval of the executed contract as part of this request. 
 
DISCUSSION: This expenditure was approved as part of the FY19-20 budget. We were planning 
to do an RFP as required by our procurement code (since the amount is over $25,000). However, in light 
of the Mold Assessment Report received March 3, 2020, the mold condition requires that we treat this as 
an emergency purchase as discussed in my separate memo which is attached. We did obtain two other 
written quotes (attached): United restoration was $372,777 while Thermal Concepts was $216,400.75 
but this only included the duct work replacement and not remediation of building. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funds were budgeted in the FY19-20 budget 



 
 
Submission Date and Time:    4/22/2020 1:00 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  City Manager 
 
Prepared by:  William Alonso                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Public Works 
 
Account No.: 001-5405-541-46-00            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       -0- 
 
                       Current request:  $       234,400 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $       $234,400 

      











































































           
Meeting Date: 04/13/20  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Billy Bain and Members of the City Council 
 
From: William Alonso, City Manager 
 
Subject: Recommendation to Approve Emergency Award: Contract with Thermal 

Concepts for Emergency Mold Remediation/Repairs at City Hall 
            
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommendation by the City Manager’s Office that Council approve an expenditure to Thermal 
Concepts, a sole source provider for Trane, an authorized contractor, in an amount not to exceed 
$83,886 for the replacement of eight coil units related to the HVAC system in the City Hall facility 
pursuant to the emergency procurement process under Section §31.11 (E)(6)(e) of the City Code. 
 
DISCUSSION: In light of the Mold Assessment Report received March 3, 2020, the mold 
condition requires that we remove the existing coils in the eight units and replace, as they cannot be 
properly cleaned to assure that the problem will not repeat itself. Thermal Concepts was provided to us 
as a sole source authorized contractor through Trane. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
Submission Date and Time:    4/22/2020 1:09 PM____  
 

Submitted by: 
 
 
Department:  City Manager 
 
Prepared by:  William Alonso                      
 
 
Attachments:       Yes          No 
 
 
Budgeted/ Funded:     Yes          No 
 

Approved by (sign as applicable): 
 
 
Dept. Head:   
  
 
Procurement:                                   
                               
 
Asst. City Mgr.:   
 
 
City Manager:   
 
 

Funding: 
 
 
Dept./ Desc.:  Public Works 
 
Account No.: 001-5405-541-46-00            
 
Additional Funding:  N/A 
 
 
Amount previously approved:  $       -0- 
 
                       Current request:  $       $83,866 
 
              Total vendor amount:  $       $83,886 

      

























































 

1 
 

 COVID19 – Moving to a New Normal Initiative     4‐22‐20 FINAL  

 
PARKS 
NEW NORMAL INITIATVE  
Summary of Requirements 
 

APPROACH: 

Begin with safe, responsible strategies for individual/family park access and gradually move to 

full recreation and sports programming in 3 phases, protecting citizens and park employees by 

following CDC/State Health Department guidelines (e.g., six foot social distancing, all employees 

and park users use of face masks, etc.).  

PHASE 1:  Open community and neighborhood parks sunrise to sunset. Encouraging parks to be used  

    in short use intervals for 1 or 2 hours. Individual and family passive and limited activities use  

   only – as permitted by and following current CDC and State Health Department guidelines.   

 For safe, responsible individual and family passive and limited active use only, such 

as walking, jogging, hiking, and cycling, nature walks on trails and quiet enjoyment 

of the outdoors, individual basketball play only, tennis singles play only, racquetball 

individual play only. 

 Walking and nature paths will be one way (directional), face masks must be worn. 

 The following parks will remain closed: Zoo Miami; Amelia Earhart Park (closed due 

to testing for Covid‐19); Atoll Beach Pools at Matheson Hammock and at 

Homestead Bayfront Park. 

 Open Deering Estate, Fruit & Spice Park and Trail Glades Gun Range.  

 Open restrooms with attendants to regulate use (for example, number of people 

allowed in a restroom) and with frequent cleaning (every 2‐3 hours) by contracted 

janitorial services. 

 Open basketball courts for individual play only. Team or pick‐up games are 

prohibited; only 3 players per half court. Must bring your own basketball/no shared 

use. (always abide by CDC/State Health Guidelines) 

 Open tennis courts for singles play only. 

 Open racquetball courts for individual play only. Competitive games are prohibited. 

 No recreational programming, pick‐up games, organized sports or activities will be 

allowed. 

 No groups of 10 or more will be allowed in parks; smaller groups must maintain 

social distancing following CDC/Health Department guidelines. 

 Vehicle parking capacity in parks will be regulated, as necessary, to adhere to CDC 

social distancing guidelines. 

 Amenities that will remain closed include:  

o playgrounds and exercise equipment. 



 

2 
 

o dog parks, recreation buildings, picnic shelters, play fields, gyms, 

campgrounds, skate parks and swimming pools, all sports field lighting will 

remain off. 

 Seniors can use parks any time and have priority and access at dedicated parks, 2 

hours in early morning, three times a week.   

 Police, park ranger and roving park teams will follow CDC health department 

protocols and patrol parks to ensure compliance.  

 Virtual recreational programming ongoing, on‐line. 

 Parks will take extra measures to keep open facilities clean and sanitized. 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

 Comprehensive strategy utilizing all platforms (social media, television, radio, etc.) well in 

advance of reopening with stern message regarding safe protocol and CDC guidelines. 

 PSA for television in English / Spanish/Creole. 

 Social Media and Internet component in English / Spanish/Creole. 

 Flyer for distribution at parks that should include rules.  

 Any additional signage to be translated to both English / Spanish/Creole. 

 Signage posted at all parks with CDC guidelines  

o Safe and responsible use of parks. 

o Clean hands often (soap and water / hand sanitizer). 

o Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth. 

o Avoid close contact with people who are sick. 

o Practice social distancing (6 ft. minimum). 

o Cover your mouth and nose with a cloth face cover. 

o Cover coughs and sneezes. 

o Clean and disinfect frequently touched surfaces. 

 No one is permitted to use parks or trails if they are exhibiting COVID19 symptoms. 

 Follow CDC’s guidance on personal hygiene prior to and during use of parks or trails. 

 Prepare for controlled access to public restrooms or water fountains. 

 While on  trails, warn other users of  their presence, as  they pass and step aside  to  let 

others pass. 

 Always observe CDC’s minimum recommended physical distancing of 6 feet from other 

individuals. If this is not possible, users should find an alternate location or depart that 

space. 

 Consult  their  local  and  state  ordinances  and  guidelines  for  the  most  up  to  date 

recommendations on park and trail use. 

 Social media blasts to patrons. 

 Media blasts to patrons. 

 

 In accordance with CDC/State Health guidelines. 

 



 

3 
 

BOATING AND WATERWAYS  
NEW NORMAL INITIATVE  
Summary of Requirements 
 

ON‐WATER ACTIVITY: 
• Boats must remain 50 feet apart at all times* 
• No tying up in Stiltsville 
• No gatherings of more than 10 people*  
• Rafting up of boats is prohibited 
• Beaching of boats is prohibited 
• Landings are prohibited 
• Capacity of Boats: 

o Boats 25’ or less: 4 adults maximum; and immediate family (children 18 & under) 
o Boats 26’ – 36’: 6 adults maximum; and immediate family (children 18 & under) 
o Boats 37’+: 8 adults maximum; and immediate family (children 18 & under) 
o Jet Ski rental operations will be single riders only. Safe CDC guidelines regarding 

sanitizing must be followed by concessionaires. 
 

*In accordance with CDC and FWC guidelines 

  

CHARTER VESSELS: 
• Six‐Pack vessels must adhere to no more than 4 guests per vessel and CDC guidelines. 
• Drift fishing boats (head boats) will be addressed on a specific order from the Mayor’s 

office. 

  

KAYAKS/CANOES: 
• Kayak/canoe launch areas reopen. 

  

BOAT RAMP PROTOCOL: 
• Ramps will be open from 6 am – 8 pm daily and OPENING SHOULD COMMENCE ON A 

WEEKDAY 
• 1 boat per launch ramp at a time. Vessels must be prepared in advance to launch (plug 

secured, dock lines tied, safety equipment and provisions already onboard).  All passengers 
must board the vessel once it is launched. 

• Upon returning to the dock all passengers must remain on the vessel until the boat is ready 
to be loaded unto the trailer.  Once loaded, the passenger(s) shall return to their vehicle(s) 
and exit the launch facility together. 

  

FISH CLEANING STATIONS: 
• One person per station at a time. Proper cleaning and sanitation 

processes should always be practiced. 
• Social distancing should be practiced at all times as per CDC guidelines.  

  



 

4 
 

 FISHING PIERS: 
• Social distancing at a minimum of 10 ft. between fishermen must be followed. 

  

 PUBLIC RESTROOMS/SHIP STORES: 
• Access to public restrooms will be available. Safe protocol in accordance with CDC 

guidelines must be followed. 
• Those entering ship (bait & tackle) stores will be required to practice social distancing 

and utilize personal protective equipment in accordance with CDC guidelines. 
• Bait suppliers and boat repair shops will be addressed on a specific order from the Mayor’s 

office. Safe protocol in accordance with CDC guidelines must be followed. 

  

COMMUNICATIONS: 
• Comprehensive strategy utilizing all platforms (social media, television, radio, etc.) well in 

advance of reopening with stern message regarding safe protocol and CDC guidelines. 
• PSA for television in English / Spanish/Creole. 
• Social Media and Internet component in English / Spanish/Creole. 
• Flyer for distribution at boat ramps that should include rules as described under on‐water 

activity to include misdemeanor fine of $500 for violations in English / Spanish/Creole. 
• Any additional signage to be translated to both English / Spanish/Creole. 

  

POLICE ENFORCEMENT PLAN: 
 Assistant Director Hanlon (MDPD) & Major Alfredo Escanio are coordinating the law 

enforcement plan with PROS.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

CHARTER FISHING BOATS 
NEW NORMAL INITIATVE  
Summary of Requirements 
 

APPROACH: 

 Begin with safe, responsible strategies for Charter Fishing vessels and gradually move to a 
full‐service charter fishing operation, emphasizing CDC/State Health Department mandated 
guidelines (e.g., six‐foot social distancing, all employees and park users use face masks, 
etc.). 
 

PHASE 1: 

 Vessels must adhere to CDC guidelines to include social distancing. The length of the 
boat rail will determine the 6 feet safe distances for patrons.  Vessel staff should always 
insure social distancing while on the boat. 

 All fisherman must have their own fishing poles and tackle. No rental of equipment is 
allowed.  

 Restroom (head) must have CDC cleanliness guidelines posted, be sanitized/disinfected 
each trip or as needed. Soap, water, and/or hand sanitizer for patrons required.  
Restroom must be sanitized hourly. 

 Delineate “Safe” patron fishing positions on seats, vessel railings or deck with tape (6 ft. 
minimum spacing).  

 Fish cleaning/bait table stations: One person per station at a time. Proper cleaning and 
sanitation processes should always be practiced. 

 If mates are fileting fish patrons caught, only one mate per table. Social distancing 
guidelines apply between mates and patrons. 

 It is recommended captain, crew and patrons wear face masks and gloves following 
CDC/State Health guidelines. (need medical recommendation) 

 Landside operations: Check in location is required to practice safe social distancing 
and utilize personal protective equipment in accordance with CDC guidelines. 

 Delineate, with tape, safe social distance positions for those waiting in line to check 
in/out. 

 Staff and patrons must wear masks or the equivalent, while on the dock, practicing safe 
social distancing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

GOLF 
NEW NORMAL INITIATVE  
Summary of Requirements 
(Incorporated below are the recommendations provided by the National Golf Course Owners 
Association, PGA of America, and USGA, as to how best to provide a safe environment on 
South Florida´s Golf Courses due to COVID‐19) 
 

ON‐COURSE FACILITY 
 
 Players will be responsible for bringing their golf equipment to a designated area. No clubs 

or other equipment will be transported by golf course staff. 

 Designated signage will be placed outside the pro‐shop and clubhouse outlining the 
required social distancing guidelines with masks. 

 Designated signage will be placed on carts and around the clubhouse with the phone 
number to call for food orders and an explanation of how to pay. 

 All guidelines will be followed to not exceed gathering limits established by local and state 
authorities. 

 No indoor events will be conducted. 

 Pro‐Shop entrances, where possible, will be closed. 
o Payment will be made at front door following proper social distancing guidelines. 
o Glass/plastic screen between pro‐shop staff and customers will be installed. 
o Staff will wear masks and gloves at all times. 
o Where applicable, separate entry and exit doors will be designated. 

 No locker room usage and no bag storage usage. 

 For all pro‐shop lines, markers will be placed on the floor at six feet intervals to comply with 
social distancing guidelines. 

 Hand sanitizer and/or disinfectant wipes will be provided in bathrooms/payment areas. 

 Bathrooms will have disinfectant wipes for golfers to wipe down everything they touched 
before exiting. 

 Encourage only one person in each bathroom at any time (signage placed).  

 After sanitizing cart, if able to be sourced, provide disinfectant wipes in each cart when 
available. 

 Each cart and any rental equipment will be cleaned and disinfected prior to players use. 
o All sand containers, scorecards, pencils, tees, towels, coolers or other shared 

materials will be removed from golf carts.  

 Disinfect all bathrooms and touch‐point areas every two hours. 

 Driving‐range hitting areas will be spaced at least 10‐feet apart. 

 Scorecard, pencil and tees will only be issued to individuals when requested from starter, 
but then discarded after their initial use. 

 

 
 
 



 

7 
 

GOLF‐COURSE PREPARATION 
 

 Cup Modifications: 
o A noodle will be used to fill the hole, or the cup will be raised an inch above 

ground to prevent the ball from going in the hole (prevents flagpole touching). 
o EZ lift touchless golf ball retrieval system or similar touchless system. 

 Rakes in all Bunkers will be removed: 
o USGA suggestions will be followed to use different approaches on how to treat 

bunker play depending on the course and its resources. 
o USGA suggests golfers play preferred lie and players to “rake” with their feet. 

 All water stations will be removed. 

 All ball wash units will be removal or locked down. 

 All practice facility bag stands, chairs and PVC pipes for picking up balls will be removed.  

 All range‐balls will be cleaned, with water and soap, after every pick‐up prior to making 
them available for golfers. 

 Where possible, 60 and older clientele will be separated from younger clientele.  
 

PLAYING 
 

 Players will be informed not to touch or remove flagstick from the cups at all times 
(any putts that hit the cup or noodle will be considered holed). 

 All players must stay at least six feet apart at all times, and a course ranger or other 
staff member will monitor player compliance on the course. 

 One player per cart, no exceptions. 

 Walking is allowed while maintaining social distancing requirements. 

 All golfers are required to leave the golf course immediately after playing to eliminate 
congestion and gathering on the property or in the parking lot. 

 

FOOD AND BEVERAGE 
 

 Local governmental entity guidelines will be followed. 

 Restaurant entry will be remained closed. 
o Payment for take‐out food will be made at the restaurant front door following 

social distancing requirements. 
o No sit down‐areas will be allowed for eating. 
o Staff will be required to wear a facemask and gloves. 

 Beverage Carts on the Golf Course: 
o Beverage cart staff will wear facemask and gloves at all times. 
o Signage will be placed on beverage carts stating that no player will be allowed to 

touch anything on the beverage cart. 
o Only cart attendant will distribute items from the cart. 

 Beverage cart attendant will place purchased items on opposite side of 
the players golf cart, to comply with social distancing requirements.  



 

8 
 

 For players that are walking, the beverage cart attendant will place the 
purchased items on the ground and the players will pick it up, to comply 
with social distancing requirements.  

o Players will be encouraged to pay with credit card and cart attendant will wipe 
down the credit card machine after each use.  

 
PREPARING YOUR STAFF 
 

 Staff will be trained on proper hygiene, sanitation and food handling / Covid‐19 
prevention and control procedures will be emphasized during training. 

 Staff will be trained to recognize the symptoms of COVID‐19 and follow CDC guidelines. 

 Face masks and gloves will be worn by all staff at all times. 

 Staff will be trained there are no handshakes and will remind golfers of this necessity. 
 

(Signage on‐Display) 

 
NAME OF GOLF COURSE 

 
 You are required to maintain a social distance of at least 6‐feet between yourself and 

the next person in front and behind you. 

 No direct contact is permitted with any golf course personnel. 

 After conducting your transaction, use an alcohol‐based hand sanitizer or wash your 
hands with soap & water for at least 20‐seconds. 

 Exit the pro‐shop through the separate exit to avoid 2‐way traffic at the entrance door 
used to enter, and do not touch barrier between shop personnel and player. 

 No handshakes or other forms of touching is permitted before, during, or after play with 
any other persons on the golf course. 

 If you brought your own water bottle or towel do not share either with any others on 
the golf course. 

 All persons are not permitted to congregate in any areas and will be required to leave 
the golf course after their play to eliminate gatherings.  

 Management reserves the right at any moment to limit play or close‐off sections of the 
golf course, including the short‐game area or driving range, should players not comply 
with social distancing guidelines described above and/or other recommendations noted 
by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control & Prevention. 

 Always cover coughing or sneezing with a tissue then throw such in the trash and wash 
your hands, if no tissue is available then cough into your elbow. 

 Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth. 

 If you are feeling ill depart the premises immediately, and if you are having difficulty 
breathing seek medical care. 

   



 

9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda Summary - April 27, 2020
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3
	6A - Minutes March 9, 2020 
	6B - Minutes April 20, 2020
	9A Approval of Distreebutors
	9B PO Increase for BTS
	9C Approval of Royal Rent a Car
	9E Approval of Lou's Police for Uniforms
	11A Emergency Mold
	11B Emergency Mold Repair - Guerrero/Gonzalez Engineers
	11C Emergency Mold Repair - Synergy
	11D Emergency Mold Repair - Thermal Concepts
	11E Emergency Mold Repair - Trailers for Police
	12A Miami-Dade Circle Project
	12C Reopening of Golf Course and Parks



